
WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

Donald Edmunds, Chair, Philip Sanzica, Vice Chair 
Ollie Apahidean, Karen Crusse, Michael W. Hutson, Tom Krent 

Padma Kuppa, Thomas Strat and John J. Tagle 
   

April 28, 2015 7:00 P.M. Council Board Room 
   

 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES – April 14, 2015 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 
5. POTENTIAL REGULATIONS – Woodland Protection  
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
7. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City 

Clerk by e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  
An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 14, 2015 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on April 14, 2015 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Ollie Apahidean 
Karen Crusse 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent (arrived 7:25 p.m.) 
Padma Kuppa 
Philip Sanzica 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2015-04-020 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Krent (arrived 7:25 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2015-04-021 
Moved by: Kuppa 
Seconded by: Apahidean 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 24 2015 Regular meeting as 
published. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Krent (arrived 7:25 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 14, 2015 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 
 

5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Pinery Woods Site Condominium, 25 
units/lots, North side of Wattles between Greensboro and Forsyth, Section 13, Currently 
Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant stated the item was postponed at the March 10, 2015 meeting to provide the 
applicant an opportunity to explore design options related to stormwater detention and 
cluster options. 
 
Mr. Carlisle reported on the revised site plan submitted by the applicant. He addressed the 
three revisions to the plan since its last review: 
 Stormwater detention pond shifted to the southwest corner of the site (resulted in loss 

of one lot). 
 Addition of strip of landscaped and hardscape area between access road and single 

family home to the east. 
 Preservation of additional six trees along the northern property line. 
 
Nathan Robinson of Horizon Engineering, project engineer, addressed: 
 Open space and cluster development options. 
 Stormwater management/techniques.  
 Tree preservation. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment.  
 
The following spoke in opposition of the proposed development plan: 
 
 John Taylor, 4165 Forsyth, addressed the creation of three dead-end streets, 

stormwater management, tree preservation, property value, character and ambiance of 
area. 

 Mia Shaffer, 4084 Greensboro, addressed stormwater management and tree 
preservation. Ms. Shaffer said her preference is a pine tree buffer, not a brick wall, 
should a buffer be required. 

 Diane Trombley, 4270 Greensboro, said if the development is granted approval, the 
City will be altering the very reasons why Troy is a lovely place to live. 

 Max Akins, 2545 E. Wattles, addressed stormwater management, overhead 
utilizes/transformer and access for emergency vehicles.  

 Harold Clark, 2571 E. Wattles, addressed what he called the “right of way” across the 
rear of his property, stormwater management and an additional 30 feet that remains 
his property. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 14, 2015 
  
 
 

3 
 

 Kati Cafagna, 4096 Greensboro, addressed property values, tree preservation and 
existing green environment. 

 
Mr. Carlisle informed Mr. Clark there is a utility easement on the developer side, abutting 
the rear of his property. 
 

(Mr. Krent arrived at 7:25 p.m.) 
 
Chair Edmunds closed the floor. 
 
Chair Edmunds advised the audience the Preliminary Site Plan application meets all the 
requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and noted the applicant showed movement to 
utilize cluster development options and preserving additional trees on site. 
 
Mr. Savidant said it would be in the City’s best interest to review Zoning Ordinance 
requirements relating to cluster development options. He addressed engineering design 
standards relating to stormwater management and said they would be applied so that 
abutting properties are not negatively impacted. Mr. Savidant also addressed 
interconnectivity of streets for future development. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Zoning Ordinance and State Statutes. 
 Tree preservation ordinance. 
 Vehicular light spillage within development; notation on plan relating to mitigation of 

light spillage. 
 
Resolution # PC-2015-04-022 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Condominium Approval, pursuant to Article 8 and 
Section 10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for Pinery Woods Site 
Condominium, 25 units/lots, North side of Wattles between Greensboro and Forsyth, 
Section 13, currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 14, 2015 
  
 
 

4 
 

7. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
There were general Planning Commission comments. 
 
 

 
The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Donald Edmunds, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2015 PC Minutes\Draft\2015 04 14 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



  PC 2015.04.28 
  Agenda Item # 5 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE: April 23, 2015 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: POTENTIAL REGULATIONS - Woodland Protection 
 
 
On March 24, 2015 the Planning Commission passed the following resolution:  

 
RESOLVED, That staff explore developing the beginnings of a tree ordinance 
and wetlands ordinance for new developments and come back to the Planning 
Commission with a presentation. 
 

To facilitate the development of tree regulations in a timely manner, staff recommends that 
wetlands provisions be considered in the future. This will allow our efforts to focus on 
provisions related to woodland protection.  
 
The attached memo prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarizes 
alternative approaches available to the City in terms of woodland protection. The city’s 
Troy Landscape Design and Tree Preservation Standards are also attached. 
 
The main focus of the April 28, 2015 Planning Commission meeting is to clearly define 
what the Planning Commission intends to achieve with respect to woodland protection. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Memo prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2. City of Troy Landscape Design and Tree Preservation Standards. 

 
 
C:\Users\czarneckik\Desktop\2015 04 28 PC Memo 04 28 2015.doc 

 



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President   R. Donald Wortman, Vice President   Douglas J. Lewan, Principal   John L. Enos, Principal   David Scurto, Principal 
Benjamin R. Carlisle, Senior Associate Sally M. Elmiger, Senior Associate Brian Oppmann, Associate   Laura K. Kreps, Associate 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:    Planning Commission, City of Troy 
 
FROM:  Richard K. Carlisle, AICP, PCP 

DATE:  April 23, 2015 
 
RE:  Woodland Protection/Replacement 
 
We  have  been  requested  to  provide  the  Planning  Commission with  information  regarding woodland 
protection.  Included  in  this  discussion  is  background  and  basis  for woodland  protection,  alternative 
approaches, examples from other communities and key  issues to be considered by the Commission  in 
adopting woodland protection regulations. 
 
Background and Basis 
 
Woodland regulations aim to protect, preserve, and ensure proper maintenance of woodlands located in 
the City. Woodland regulations seek to promote development that minimizes impacts on City’s woodland 
resources. Woodlands  serve many  valuable  functions  including  providing wildlife  habitat,  protecting 
against  erosion  and  sedimentation,  buffering  against  noise,  and  cooling  and  cleansing  air.  They  also 
provide an important element of community character.  
 
Protection of woodlands is most acute where significant losses of wooded areas through clearcutting of 
properties being developed are dramatically changing the character of the City. A Woodlands Protection 
Ordinance can also become a tool to promote more creative design which preserves existing tree cover 
and vegetation 
 
The effectiveness of any regulation is enhanced when there is foundation in the Master Plan. Fortunately, 
the City’s Master Plan Chapter entitled  “Green City: Responsibility  to Natural and Energy Resources” 
speaks to the importance of natural feature preservation and the position effect such preservation has on 
property values.  
 
Existing City Regulations 
 
As part of a site plan submittal the applicant is required to provide a Tree Identification Survey for all trees 
between four (4) to ten (10) inches in diameter at breast height (DBH).  DBH is the diameter of a tree at 
four‐and‐a‐half feet off the ground.  The Tree Identification Survey must include size, species, and quality 
(poor, fair, or good).  While the applicant is required to provide a Tree Identification Survey there are no 
regulations to require preservation, protection, or replacement.   
 
 



Woodland Protection 
April 23, 2015 

 

2 

 

Alternative Approaches 
 
Regulatory approaches can vary in terms of scope and degree of restrictions. In general, there are several 
concepts that guide the development of woodland protection regulations: 

 Only woodlands that have been identified in advance through a mapping process are subject to 
regulations. 

 In  the absence of woodland map, all wooded areas  in a  community are  regulated,  subject  to 
qualification or exemption. 

 Typically, only woodlands over a certain size are regulated. 

 Typically, most Ordinances include specific landmark trees defined by size or quality as regulated. 
 
The City of Novi Woodlands Protection Ordinance provides a good example of  regulation based on a 
regulated woodlands map. In Novi, all vegetation within designated woodland areas, as well as any tree 
larger than 36” DBH.  Utilizing a regulated woodlands map approach can be useful to serve notice to areas 
intended to be regulated. However, it can be expensive and, depending on the information available, can 
always lead to disputes over accuracy. 
 
Generally speaking, residents cannot remove trees or vegetation in Regulated Woodland areas unless a 
Woodlands Permits has been obtained. However, there are exceptions that do not require a Woodlands 
Permit. The exceptions include: 

 Removal within a 12‐month period of a single tree with a DBH measured at 4 ½ feet above the 
existing grade of less than 8 inches on a property where a valid certificate of occupancy has been 
issued. 

 The removal of trimming of dead, diseased or damaged trees or other woody vegetation, provided 
that  the  damage  resulted  from  a  non‐human  cause  as  determined  by  the  Community 
Development  Department  staff.  (Diseased  trees  must  be  determined  by  Michigan  State 
Cooperative Extension Service Plant or equivalent laboratory). 

 
When an approved  site plan or woodland permit allows  removal of  trees,  such  trees either must be 
relocated or  replaced. There  is a specific  ratio  in  the Ordinance  that specifies  the number and size of 
replacement trees.   
 
Another, approach  that does not  require  regulation based on a woodlands map  is one  that we have 
prepared  for various communities  including Ann Arbor and Scio Townships.  In both cases,  there  is an 
exemption  for parcels of a  certain  size as well as other  tree  removal activities  (i.e. diseased  trees or 
invasive species).  
 
Regulation of tree removal is required for parcels greater than the exempted size and for parcels subject 
to  site  plan  review.  The mechanism  for  enforcement  in  the  former  case  is  a  certificate  of  zoning 
compliance, although a specific tree removal permit could also be required.  
 
There is a formula in the Ordinance that permits a landowner from a certain percentage of tree removal. 
In Scio Township’s case, it is 20%. The Zoning Administrator may require a tree survey to be submitted to 
verify the request. 
 



Woodland Protection 
April 23, 2015 

 

3 

 

There are also specific provisions for the removal of Landmark Trees. There is a schedule in the Ordinance 
which specifically  identifies the size and type of  landmark trees. This  is a pretty typical requirement  in 
most woodland protection ordinances.  
 
There are also  tree  removal and  replacement  regulations when  removal exceeds 20%,  there are  tree 
replacement requirements.  
 
The City of Northville, which we help  administer, uses  a  similar  approach,  although  the  threshold of 
exemption is more typical of a City environment. 
 
Issues to Consider 
 
When evaluating whether to regulate woodlands or not, here are the issues we typically encounter: 
 

1. What do you want to achieve?  In most cases, communities want to avoid clearcutting and the 
removal of  landmark  trees.  In  Troy’s  case,  it would also appear we want  to encourage more 
creative and sensitive land development. 

2. Do you want to focus on woodland protection, woodland/tree replacement, or combination of 
both?  

3. How do you avoid being too restrictive to single family homeowners? This always seems to be the 
“hot button” issue. The answer typically comes in two forms: 1) Exemption from regulation based 
on size of parcel, 2) Exemption from a reasonable level of removal activity. 

4. How are reasonable  tree replacement requirements developed? Again,  this becomes a critical 
issue.  Because  trees  are  a  renewable  resource, most  ordinances  require much  less  than  1:1 
replacement.  

5. What are the cost of regulations? As with all ordinances, there will be a cost of enforcement. The 
City will have to provide a  level of expertise  in evaluation permits for removal as well as when 
there are questions of exemption. There is also a private cost. In most cases, it can be minimized 
to the cost of a permit. In others, there will be the cost of evaluation and, ultimately replacement. 

 
These are my  initial thoughts. Once the Commission has had an opportunity to refine the scope of the 
regulations, we will  be  able  to  provide  a  draft Ordinance  for  review.  In  the meantime,  if  there  are 
additional questions, please do not hesitate to ask. 
 
Yours Truly, 
 

 
 
#225‐1429 



 
 
 
 
 

Landscape Design and Tree Preservation Standards  
 
 
 
 

Reviewing Agency: 
CITY OF TROY PARKS AND RECREATION 

DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        ADOPTED:  9-15-75 
 
        RESOLUTION NO.  75-829 
 
        REVISED:  1-31-77 
 
        RESOLUTION NO.  77-88 
 
        REVISED:  11-3-86 
 
        RESOLUTION NO.  86-1148 
 
        REVISED:  3-16-87 
 
        RESOLUTION NO.  87-301 
 
        REVISED:  2-12-96 
 
        RESOLUTION NO.  96-152 



LANDSCAPE DESIGN 
AND TREE PRESERVATION STANDARDS 

INDEX 
 
 TITLE          PAGE 
 
1.00 Introduction             1 
 
1.01 Circumstance for Variations from the Landscape Design  
 and Tree Preservation Standards              1 
 
1.02 Request for Variance           1 
 
1.03 Special Conditions            2 
 
1.04 Federal and State Standards          2 
 
2.00 Standards for Landscape Development and Tree Preservation 
 Plans              2 
 
2.01 Request for Waiver of Tree Preservation Standards       2 
 
2.02 General Requirements for Tree Preservation Plan Submittals          2-3 
 
2.03 General Requirement for Landscape Plan Submittals           3 
 
2.04 Trees to be Preserved           3-4 
 
2.05 Preliminary Tree Preservation Plans         4-5 
 
2.06 Final Tree Preservation Plans          5 
 
2.07 Planting Plan                 6 
 
2.08 Construction Drawings           6 
 
2.09 Landscape Planting Specifications         7 
 
2.10 Cost Estimate            7 
 
3.00 Submittal Requirements           7 
 
3.01 The Reviewing Body           7 
 
3.02 Submission for Review           7 
 
3.03 Changes in a Landscape Plan Resulting from the City of 
 Troy's Plan Review Process          7 
 
3.04 Tree Preservation Plan Review Fee         8 
 
 
 TITLE          PAGE 



 
3.05 Landscape Plan Review Fee          8 
 
3.06 Other Charges            8-9 
 
3.07 Tree Preservation Permits               9-10 
 
4.00 Inspection Schedule         10 
 
4.01 Initial Site Inspection         10 
 
4.02 First Landscape Implementation Inspection      10 
 
4.03 Spot Inspections          11 
 
4.04 Final Implementation Inspection          11 
 
4.05 Final Inspection          11-12 
 
5.00 Landscape Contractor Qualifications and Responsibilities    12 
 
5.01 Qualifications of the Landscape Contractor      12 
 
5.02 Tree Appraiser Qualification and Responsibilities     12-13 
 
5.03 Responsibilities of the Landscape Contractor        13 
 
5.04 Responsibilities of the Tree Appraiser       13 
 
6.00 Plant Material Requirements        14 
 
6.01 Broadleaf Evergreens         14 
 
6.02 Coniferous Evergreens         14 
 
6.03 Deciduous Shrubs          14-15 
 
6.04 Deciduous Shade and Small Flowering Trees      15 
 
6.05 Ground Covers          15-16 
 
6.06 Turf Grass           16 
 
6.07 Other Requirements Placed on Plant Materials        16-17 
 
6.08 Prohibited Plant Materials           17-18 
 



 
 
 TITLE          PAGE 
 
 
D-1 Landscaping as Required by the Troy City Code    19 
 
D-2 The City          20 
 
D-3 The Developer         20 
 
D-4 The Landscape Contractor         20 
 
D-5 The Planting Plan         20 
 
D-6 Ball and Burlapped Materials       20 
 
D-7 Bare Root Materials          20 
 
D-8 Potted Materials         20 
 
D-9 Container Grown Materials       20 
 
D-10 Construction Drawings        20 
 
D-11 Landscape Specifications         20 
 



 
LANDSCAPE DESIGN AND TRESS PRESERVATION STANDARDS 

 
 
1.00 Introduction 
 
 It is the intent of the City Code Chapter 39, Section 12.60.01; 11.50.05; 

12.60.02; 13.60.00; 15.60.00; 16.60.00; 17.60.00; 39.30.01-07; 10.30.03 
(C); 18.30.03 (B); 10.30.01 (E); 22.30.01 (B); 24.30.06 (B) and Chapter 41, 
Sections (E) and (F) to obtain an environment which is responsive to human 
needs, socially positive, economically viable and environmentally satisfying.  
The standards contained herein are forwarded as criteria toward the 
achievement of these objectives.  The reviewing agency for standards is the 
City of Troy Parks and Recreation Department. 

 
 
1.01 Circumstances for Variations from the Landscape Design and Tree 

Preservation Standards 
 
 These Standards are not intended to be arbitrary or inhibiting to creative 

solutions.  Project conditions may justify modifications of these standards 
when conditions arise where full compliance is impossible, or under 
circumstances where achievement of the City's objectives can be better 
obtained through modified requirements.  Therefore, in specific cases, 
variation of the requirements may be permitted by the Director of Parks and 
Recreation when this variation more fully achieves the objectives contained 
herein and when one or more of the following conditions justify the variance: 

 
 1. Topography, soil, or other site conditions are such that full 

compliance is impossible. 
 
 2. Improved environmental quality, and/or utility would result from the 

variance. 
 
 3. Alternate methods, materials or equipment may be used when 

their use would more closely fulfill the intended objectives of these 
standards. 

 
 4. Lack of existing native vegetation within the limits of the property. 
 
 
1.02 Request for Variance 
 
 A request for variance must be submitted to the Director of Parks and 

Recreation in writing at the beginning of the review procedure. 
 
 Describe completely the rationale for the variance request.  Example:  All 

existing vegetation on the site is below the four (4) inch D.B.H. preservation 
size requirement. 

1.03 Special Conditions 
 
 Because of various conditions in a specific project, the Director of Parks and 

Recreation may require compliance with standards other than those 



 

 
 
 2 

contained herein, in order to obtain those characteristics of viability, utility, 
service, public safety, and low maintenance expense, while satisfying its 
objectives and insure continued market acceptance of the project. 

 
1.04 Federal and State Standards 
 
 It should be noted that where Federal and/or State standards pertain, the 

higher standard shall govern.  An example of a possible higher standard 
would be the Federal Government's Endangered Species Act. 

 
2.00 Standards for Landscape Development and Tree Preservation Plans 
 
 The intent of this section of the Standards is to insure that the proper 

consideration is given to the development of tree preservations and/or 
landscape plan, and that a logical step design process is instituted by the 
developer.  By using a logical design process, it is expected that a great 
many potential problems of the plan will be resolved during this planning 
process, and excessive and expensive on-site changes during the 
implementation of the design will be eliminated. 

 
2.01 Request for Waiver of Tree Preservation Standards 
 
 Developer may request relief from conforming to the tree preservation 

requirement by requesting a waiver and should be requested in writing to the 
Parks and Recreation Department, explaining the reasons for the request.  
The waiver request will be evaluated in the field and the developer will be 
advised of the department's finding in writing. 

 
 
2.02 General Requirements for Tree Preservation Plan Submittals 
 
 Both preliminary and final tree preservation plans shall conform to this format. 

 Three (3) copies shall be provided at the time of submittal. 
 
 A. Title Sheet 
    1. Project Name 
    2. Project Location Map with a scale of 1" = 200' 
    3. Name of Developer, address, phone and fax number 
    4. Name of Project Engineering Firm, address, phone and fax number 
    5. Name, address, phone and fax of Landscape Architect, Designer   
  or Tree Appraiser 
    6. Zoning Classification of the project 
 
 
 B. All Other Sheets 
    1. Number 
    2. Scale 
    a. 100' 
    3. North Arrow (except on detail sheet) 
    4. Title 



 

 
 
 3 

    5. Legend 
    6. Property Lines 
    7. All Structures existing on the site 
    8. Proposed and existing easements, utilities, rights-of-way and   
   building envelopes 
    9. Adjacent Land Use 
  10. Label existing topographic contours on preliminary plans 
  11. Label existing and proposed topographic contour lines on final plan  
   submittal 
 
 
2.03 General Requirement for Landscape Plan Submittals 
 
 A. Title Sheet 
    1. Project Name 
    2. Project Location Map 200 Scale 
    3. Name of Developer 
    4. Name of Landscape Architect or Designer 
    5. Zoning Classification 
 
 B. All Other Sheets 
    1. Number 
    2. Scale 
    a. Minimum 1" - 30' 0" 
    b. Maximum 1" - 5' 0" 
    3. North Arrow (except on detail sheet) 
    4. Title 
    5. Legend 
    6. Property Lines 
    7. All Structures (except on detail sheet) 
    8. Easement, utilities and otherwise 
 
 
2.04 Trees To Be Preserved 
 
 The City desires to preserve trees within the size range four (4) to ten (10)  inches 
in diameter at breast height (D.B.H.). 
 
 A. It is not necessary to locate any tree outside this size range on a tree   
 preservation plan unless the developer shows there is a valid reason for its  
 inclusion. 
 
  1. Trees smaller than four (4) inches D.B.H. are very difficult to work   
  around during the construction phase of most projects. 
 
  2. Trees over ten (10) inches D.B.H. are mature and often do not recover  
  after construction has occurred around them. 
 
  3. The City maintains a prohibited species list.  Trees may exist on   
  the development site that appear on the prohibited species list.     



 

 
 
 4 

  Prohibited tree species within the preservation size range will be   
  included on tree preservation submittals, however it is left to the    
 developer's discretion whether to preserve these trees or remove them   
 as part of the construction operation. 
 
   a) Trees on this list that occur in any zoning classification other than  
    residential will not be considered as an acceptable element of any  
    required landscape. 
 
 
2.05 Preliminary Tree Preservation Plans 
 
 A. Preliminary tree preservation plans shall be submitted to the Director of  
  Parks and Recreation when making the submittal to the Planning   
  Department for tentative site plan review for a building project or when the  
 tentative preliminary plat for a subdivision is submitted for review. 
 
  1. On a project plan all tree masses shall be delineated. 
 
   a. The tree masses will be surveyed.  The Appraiser shall indicate on  
   the plan the number of trees in the preservation size range.  This   
   quantity shall be divided up by tree species and indicated on the   
   plan.  Example:  4 Silver Maple, 16 Norway Maple, 2 Red Oak, 19   
  Box Elder. 
 
   b. Any single trees outside a tree mass within the preservation range  
   shall be identified and it's approximate location delineated on the   
   plan. 
 
 B. The preliminary plan will be reviewed by the Parks and Recreation   
  Department. 
 
  1. An on site visit will be made to validate the survey.  The owner or his  
   agent is encouraged to join staff in this process. 
 
  2. After the on site inspection is complete, staff will, if necessary, make  
   suggestions for design alternatives that will enhance the possibilities  
   of preserving trees without negatively impacting the project.  This   
  information will be forwarded to the owner or his agent. 
 
  3. During the preliminary review, it will be determined what area can be  
   exempted from further tree preservation considerations (i.e., street   
  rights-of-way, detention ponds, building envelopes, utility easement   
  areas, extensive cut or fill, etc.) 
 
 
2.06 Final Tree Preservation Plan 
 
 A. It is the intent of the final tree preservation plan to locate trees within the   
 preservation size range that are of significant value and warrant    



 

 
 
 5 

 preservation, during the construction phase of any commercial building   
 project or subdivision. 
 
 B. The final tree preservation plan will be based on the data collected for the  
  preliminary plan.  Prior to this phase the Parks and Recreation Department  
  will have provided a written review of the preliminary plan and will   
  graphically delineate all areas that should be included in the final plan. 
 
 C. The final tree preservation plan shall include the following: 
 
  1. Base sheet information which is the same as was described for the  
   preliminary plan, updated to reflect any design changes made during  
   the review process. 
 
  2. The tree plan shall graphically delineate the following: 
 
   a) All existing wood lots on the property. 
 
   b) Differentiate all wooded areas that have been excluded from tree  
    preservation consideration. 
 
   c) Graphically delineate areas where selective clearing of trees in the  
    preservation size range will occur. 
 
   d) Graphically delineate areas where it is expected no trees in the  
    preservable range will be removed. 
 
  3. Survey all trees within the preservation size range for those areas not  
   previously excluded from consideration.  The survey shall include the  
   following: 
 
   a) Key number which relates back to the tree location on the plan 
 
   b) Botanical name of the tree 
 
   c) Describe the condition of the tree as good, fair or poor. 
 
 
 
 
 
2.07  Planting Plan 
 
 A. All planting plans shall have a plant list.  The plant list can be 

printed on the plan or can be typed and attached to each of three 
(3) sets of plans submitted for review. 

 
 B. A plant list shall contain the following information: 
 
  1. Botanical name 



 

 
 
 6 

  2. Common name 
  3. Plant size 
  4. Number of each plant variety used 
  5. Condition 
 
   a. Balled and Burlapped (B & B) 
   b. Bare Root (BR) 
   c. Potted (Pot) 
   d. Container grown (Can) 
 
 C. All planting areas will be indicated and all plant material in these 

areas shall be to scale delineating their size at the time of 
installation.  This scale requirement does not cover the delineation 
of ground covers such as the vine varieties which may be shown 
as mass plantings. 

 
 D. Section drawing shall be included delineating the anticipated 

appearance of the required landscaping after ten (10) years of 
growth. 

 
 E. All plants shall be identified with the proper botanical name. 
 
  1. This requirement does not preclude the use of a key 
   system method of identifying plant materials on the plan. 
 
 F. Planting details will be provided for each plant group to be 

installed on the site (shade trees, shrubs, evergreens, ground 
covers, etc.) 

 
 
2.08 Construction Drawings 
 
 All construction (engineering) drawings and specifications shall conform to the 
 City of Troy Development Design Standards. 
 
2.09  Landscape Planting Specifications 
 
 Along with the landscape planting plan, the developer is required to provide 

a copy of the landscape planting specifications that will be employed during 
the implementation of the project.  If these specifications are found to be 
insufficient, the proper changes are required to be made before the 
landscape plans will be approved. 

 
 
2.10 Cost Estimate 
 
 A. An estimate covering the costs of all landscaping scheduled for the 

project needs to be submitted with all landscape plans.  Cost 
estimates for irrigation systems should not be included in the 
landscape cost estimate. 



 

 
 
 7 

 
 
3.00 Submittal Requirements 
 
 It is the intent of this section of the Landscape Design Standards to inform the 
 developer of submittal requirements, review procedures, fees and inspections 
 and guarantees.  It should be noted that strict adherence to the procedures 
 outlined herein will insure expeditious processing of plans and thereby minimize 
 the need for project modifications. 
 
 
3.01 The Reviewing Body 
 
 All landscape plans and specifications will be reviewed by the Director of Parks 
 and Recreation or his designated agent. 
 
 
3.02 Submission for Review 
 
 A. It is required that all landscape data be submitted, reviewed and approved  
  before any building permit can be issued or before final plat approval is  
  granted. 
 
 B. Three (3) copies of the landscape plan, planting specifications and cost  
  estimates will be submitted to the Parks and Recreation Department. 
 
 
3.03 Changes in a Landscape Plan Resulting from the City of Troy's Plan Review 
 Process 
 
 Any changes required by the reviewing body must be included in three (3) 
 complete sets of revised plans to be submitted to the Parks and Recreation,  along 
with the revised specifications and cost estimates. 
 
3.04 Tree Preservation Plan Review Fee 
 
 The Tree Preservation Plan Review Fee is based on the size of the project 

area.  The fee will be charged at the rate of $25.00 per acre with a minimum 
charge of $175.00.  A fee of $85.00 will be charged on all  approved 
tree preservation plan waivers.  Neither of these fees are refundable. 

 
 
3.05 Landscape Plan Review Fee 
 
 The landscape review fee will be based on the land area of the entire project.  
 The fee will be charged at the rate of $115.00 per acre with a minimum charge 
 of $85.00.  This fee is not refundable. 
 
 
3.06 Other Charges 



 

 
 
 8 

 
 A. After the landscape plans, planting specifications and cost estimate have  
  been approved, and prior to the issuance of any landscape permit, the   
 developer shall post with the City an irrevocable bank letter of credit   
 and/or cash in the amount of twenty-five (25) percent of the project's   
 total landscaping cost estimate. 
 
  1. The purpose of this requirement is to insure implementation of the   
  landscape plan as approved by the City and will be refunded in a two-  
  step process upon completion of landscape (see 3.06 B.). 
 
   a. The irrevocable bank letter of credit, and/or cash deposit will   
   be returned after the completion of the entire project. 
 
  2. On-site changes of an approved landscape plan may be made using  
   the  following procedure: 
 
   a. All changes must be approved by the City. 
 
   b. Prior to any deviation from the accepted plan, the developer   
   shall contact the City and ask for an evaluation of the proposed 
    change.  Should the proposed change be acceptable, a signed  
    approval form will be forwarded to the developer. 
 
   c. In projects where deviation from the accepted landscape   
    plan has been approved, the developer shall forward as-  
    built drawings to the City prior to inspection of the site. 
 
   d. It should be noted that these requirements apply only to the   
   landscaping required by the City Code. 
 B. Once the landscape plan has been fully implemented, the developer shall  
  post with the Parks and Recreation office an irrevocable bank letter of   
 credit and/or cash in the amount of ten (10%) percent of the approved   
 cost estimate of the landscaping required by the City Code.  This letter   
 shall be posted with the Parks and Recreation Department prior to the   
 issuance of the final certification of occupancy. 
 
  1. The intent of this requirement is to insure that all dead, dying,   
   diseased and/or weakened plant materials found to be existing on   
  the landscape project site shall be replaced with viable plant    
  materials during the next acceptable installation season. 
 
  2. The irrevocable bank letter of credit and/or cash will be held for a   
  minimum of one year.  At the end of this one year holding and    
  after the final inspection, the developer will receive in writing from   
  the City a notice listing any and all replacements which must be    
 installed. 
 
  3. When the replacement plant materials have been installed to the   
  satisfaction of the City, the bank letter of credit and/or cash will    



 

 
 
 9 

 be released, and a final project approval letter will be forwarded    
 to the developer. 
 
  4. It should be noted that these requirements apply only to the    
  landscaping required by the City Code. 
 
  5. Failure on the part of the developer to comply with these standards   
  may result in the forfeiture of either or both of the irrevocable    
  letters of credit and/or cash. 
 
 
3.07 Tree Preservation Permits 
 
 A. Once the tree preservation is approved and the review fees have been   
 remitted to the City, a Tree Preservation Permit will be issued. 
 
  1. No tree removals shall occur without a permit. 
 
 B. Performing any tree removals without having a valid Tree Preservation   
 Permit will result in the doubling of the review fee. 
 
 Landscape Permit 
 
 A. Once the landscape plan is approved and all fees and deposits have been  
  remitted to the City in an acceptable manner a landscape permit will be  
  issued. 
 
  1. No landscape work shall take place without a permit. 
 
 B. Performing any landscaping construction without having a valid landscape  
  permit shall result in the doubling of the landscape review fee and no   
 temporary or final certificate of occupancy will be granted until these   
 standards are complied with fully. 
 
 
4.00 Inspection Schedule 
 
 A. The intent of this section of the Standards is to inform the developer of the  
 inspection schedule which will be employed by the City during the    
 landscape construction period.  By this section the developer is also    
 informed of what procedures must be employed in order to receive an   
 inspection at the requested time, and the scope of each inspection. 
 
 
4.01 Initial Site Inspection 
 
 A. When a landscape plan is received by the City, a site inspection may   
 be made to help the reviewing body to determine if any problem areas can   
 be found that may not be fully delineated on the plans.  This will also help   
 the reviewing body realize the full impact of the proposed landscape   



 

 
 
 10 

 development on the local environment.  This inspection will be carried out   
 by the City. 
 
 
4.02 First Landscape Implementation Inspection 
 
 A. After the landscape plan has been approved, review fee paid, and the   
 irrevocable bank letter of credit and/or cash deposit has been posted with   
 the Parks and Recreation office, the implementation of the landscape plan   
 can begin.  It is also a requirement that the City be informed of the    
 proposed starting date at least twenty-four (24) hours before work on the   
 project begins. 
 
 B. Upon receiving notification of date of implementation of the project, an   
 inspection will be scheduled. 
 
 C. During the inspection, all plant materials will be inspected to see that   
 they meet the approved specifications, and are viable, and free from   
 disease. 
 
  1. Developer shall be advised of any substandard plant materials. 
 
 D. Failure to follow this procedure on the part of the developer, will result   
 in a stop work order until all requirements are met. 
 
 
 
 
 
4.03 Spot Inspections 
 
 A. During the course of the implementation of the plan, spot inspections of   
 the project may be made to insure that the approved specifications are   
 being followed. 
 
 
4.04 Final Implementation Inspection 
 
 A. The developer will request a final implementation inspection by the City at  
  least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the proposed inspection date. 
 
 B. When the project has been approved by the City, he shall sign and   
  forward to the developer an approval certificate and shall request release  
  of the irrevocable bank letter of credit and/or cash deposit. 
 
 C. In cases where the project has not been approved, the objections shall   
 be outlined in writing by the City and shall then forward this notice to the   
 developer.  This notice will also stipulate the date and/or dates by which   
 the required alterations will be completed. 
 



 

 
 
 11 

 D. When a project has not been approved at the time of the final    
 implementation inspection, an additional inspection will be made as soon   
 as the required alterations have been completed.  The date for this    
 inspection can be set by contacting the City at least twenty-four (24)   
 hours prior to the proposed inspection date. 
 
 E. The irrevocable bank letter of credit and/or cash deposit will not be   
  returned until the required alterations are completed. 
 
 
4.05 Final Inspection 
 
 A. This inspection will take place within the twelfth month after the date of   
 the final implementation inspection. 
 
 B. It is the responsibility of the developer to contact the City requesting a   
 final inspection, and to establish a date and time for this inspection. 
 
 C. At the established date and time, the developer may meet with the   
  City on the site.  At that time all landscape materials will be inspected. 
 
 D. All materials that do not pass this inspection will be listed in written form  
  and forwarded to the developer by the City.  This notice will also    
 stipulate the date by which all replacements will be completed. 
 
 
 E. When a project has not been approved at the time of the final inspection,  
  an additional inspection will be made when the required alterations have  
  been completed.  The date for this inspection can be established by   
  contacting the City at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the proposed   
 inspection date. 
 
 F. When the project has been approved by the City, the irrevocable bank   
 letter of credit and/or cash deposit shall be released. 
 
 G. Failure on the part of the developer to follow this procedure will result   
 in the forfeiture of the irrevocable bank letter of credit and/or cash    
 deposit. 
 
 
5.00 Landscape Contractor Qualifications and Responsibilities 
 
 The intent of this section of the Standards is to inform the developer of what 
 minimum qualifications a Tree Appraiser and/or landscape contractor must have 
 prior to any landscape project coming under the control of these standards.  
 Information as to the responsibilities of the landscape contractor other than the 
 simple implementation of the landscape plans can be found in this section of 
 these standards. 
 
 



 

 
 
 12 

5.01 Qualifications of the Landscape Contractor 
 
 A. The landscape contractor shall be licensed by the State of Michigan,   
 Department of Agriculture Plant Industries Division to handle plant    
 materials. 
 
 B. The landscape contractor will be covered by a public liability and property  
  damage insurance policy.   
 
 C. The landscape contractor shall conform to all Federal and State Labor   
 Laws. 
 
 
5.02 Tree Appraiser Qualifications and Responsibilities 
 
 The intent of this section of the Standards is to inform the developer of what 
 minimum qualifications a Tree Appraiser must have prior to tree preservation 
 project coming under the control of these standards.  Information as to the 
 responsibilities of the Appraiser other than the simple implementation of the 
 landscape plans can be found in this section of these standards. 
 
 
 
 Qualifications of Tree Appraiser 
 
 A. A qualified Tree Appraiser shall have a minimum of two (2) years of   
  college in the areas of Horticulture, Forestry, Urban Forestry, Landscape  
  Architecture or related field or two (2) years experience at a    
  supervisory level in one of these disciplines or related field.  The    
 Department will review credentials upon request of the developer. 
 
 
5.03 Responsibilities of the Landscape Contractor 
 
 A. The landscape contractor shall guarantee that all plants are true to   
  botanical name, and that the quality and size meet the approved    
 specifications. 
 
 B. The landscape contractor shall fully guarantee that all plants are in a   
 vigorous growing condition during and at the end of the guarantee period.   
 This guarantee period shall be minimum of one (1) year from the    
 completion date of the project. 
 
 C. Replacement plants and/or landscape materials other than plants shall be  
  in accordance with the approved original specifications. 
 
 D. The contractor shall at all times keep the premises and public streets free  
  from any excessive accumulation of soil and waste material or rubbish   
 caused by his employees or work, and at the completion of the work, he   
 shall remove all his waste, excessive material, rubbish and equipment so   



 

 
 
 13 

 as to leave the premises neat and clean and ready for the purpose for   
 which it was intended. 
 
 E. The contractor shall properly protect all existing structures and property.   
  This is to include, but not to be limited to:  sidewalks, curbs, fences,   
 buildings, lawns, trees and shrubbery.  Repair of all parts shall be done   
 in strict accordance with the requirements of the proper City authorities. 
 
 
5.04 Responsibilities of the Tree Appraiser 
 
 A. Be able to provide the necessary graphic and written reports as outlined  
  in this Standard. 
 
 B. Shall be held accountable for the accuracy of all graphic and written   
 submittals. 
 
 
 
 
6.00 Plant Material Requirements 
 
 The intent of this section of the Landscape Design and Tree Preservation 
 Standard is to inform the developer of the minimum requirements placed on all 
 plant materials used to implement those landscape requirements as called for 
 by the City Code. 
 
 A. The following information includes the definitions of the six (6) major   
 plant groups that come under the control of these standards and the   
 specific requirements placed on each plant group. 
 
 
6.01 Broadleaf Evergreens 
 
 As the name implies, this group of plant materials have broad leaves, rather  than 
needles, and retain their foliage throughout the winter months.  This plant  group is a 
woody perennial having both low spreading varieties and shrub  forms. 
 
 A. Minimum required size for low spreading varieties of broadleaf evergreens  
  is fifteen (15) to eighteen (18) inches. 
 
 B. Minimum required size for shrub form broadleaf evergreens is eighteen  
  (18) to twenty-four (24) inches. 
 
 
6.02 Coniferous Evergreens 
 
 This group of plant materials maintains its foliage throughout the entire year 

in a green condition.  These plants are woody perennials and for the most 
part, have very narrow leaves, often referred to as needles.  It should be 



 

 
 
 14 

noted that coniferous evergreens have both spreading and upright varieties. 
 
 A. Minimum required size for spreading coniferous evergreens if 

fifteen (15) to eighteen (18) inches in width. 
 
 B. Minimum required size for upright coniferous evergreens is five (5) 

to six (6) feet tall. 
 
 
6.03 Deciduous Shrubs 
 
 This group is made up of those perennial woody plants with several self-

supporting canes, which lose their foliage each autumn. 
 
 A. Each plant will have a minimum of at least five (5) canes, at least 

eighteen (18) to twenty-four (24) inches long. 
 B. This requirement does not preclude the possibility of using 

espaliered shrubs. 
 
 
6.04 Deciduous Shade and Small Flowering Trees 
 
 Are those woody perennial plant materials with one or more self-supporting 

stems or trunks with a usually well defined branching network located near 
the distal end of the trunk.  The foliage of this plant group is dropped each 
autumn, and is renewed in the spring of the year. 

 
 A. The minimum heights and caliper requirements for shade trees are 

as follows: 
 
  1. The minimum caliper requirement is two (2") inches to two 

and one half (2½) inches. 
 
  2. The minimum height requirement is twelve (12) to fourteen 

(14) feet. 
 
 B. The minimum height and caliper requirements for small flowering 

trees are as follows: 
 
  1. Minimum caliper requirement one and one-half (1½) to 

one and three-quarters (1-3/4) inches. 
 
  2. Minimum height requirement is six (6) to eight (8) feet. 
 
 C. It should be noted that all caliper measurements will be taken at 

least six (6) inches above the graft (on grafted materials) and six 
(6) inches above root, shoot junction on all non-grafted materials. 

 
 D. All height measurements will be taken from the soil line at the base 

of the tree to the end of the central leader. 



 

 
 
 15 

 
6.05 Ground Covers 
 
 A. As a general requirement placed on all ground covers, no rooted 

cutting will be deemed as acceptable plant materials.  The reason 
behind the prohibition against the use of rooted cuttings is 
because of the very limited root systems causing, in many cases, a 
very high mortality rate.  All ground cover materials shall be at least 
one (1) year bedded stock. 

 
 B. The following requirements shall govern those ground covers that 

spread over the desired area by the use of above ground runners. 
  1. The minimum number of runners required per plant is 

three (3). 
  2. The minimum required length of each is ten (10) inches. 
 
 C. The following requirements shall govern those ground covers that 

spread over the desired area by the use of underground runners. 
 
  1. All plants shall be potted in peat or clay pot containers 

with the minimum dimensions of two and one-quarter (2 
1/4) inches by two and three-quarter (2 3/4) inches. 

 
  2. All plants shall be well balanced and have a well 

established root system. 
 
  3. Maximum spacing between plants at installation shall not exceed eight  
  (8) inches on center. 
 
 
6.06 Turf Grass 
 
 Those herbaceous plant materials which have a low spreading growth habit 

covering the soil surface often used in lieu of an ornamental ground cover, or 
an organic/inorganic material such as woodchips or stone. 

 
 A. Standards governing turf grass installations shall conform to the City's   
 Development Design Standards. 
 
 
6.07 Other Requirements Placed on Plant Materials 
 
 The following information is a list of all other requirements placed on all plant 

materials used in the implementation of those landscape projects called for 
by City Code. 

 
 A. All plant material shall conform in botanical name, dimensions, and 

quality of the "Horticultural Standards" adopted by the American 
Association of Nurserymen. 

 



 

 
 
 16 

 B. All bare root (BR) plant material shall have a well branched root 
system, characteristic of the species.  The root system will meet 
the minimum standards for bare root nursery stock as set down by 
the American Association of Nurserymen. 

 
 C. Balled and Burlapped (B & B) plant material shall be balled with 

original soil, intact with the fibrous roots to insure maximum 
recovery after transplanting. 

 D. Plants shall conform to the above standards when materials are 
balled and burlapped (B & B). 

 
 E. Potted plants shall have sufficient root structures to insure full 

recovery and development. 
 
 F. Any plants existing on the site requiring relocation must be dug in 

accordance with the above stated standards. 
 
 G. Nursery stock shall be vigorous, free from disease, insects, insect 

eggs, or larvae. 
 
 H. Substitution of materials included in an approved plan shall be 

made with the consent of the City.  The owner may request an 
amendment verbally or in writing.  Approval can be given verbally 
and followed up in writing.  The developer shall provide an as-built 
drawing indicating the changes prior to the release of the 
landscape deposit. 

 
6.08 Prohibited Plant Materials 
 
 The following list of plant materials shall not be planted in the City: 
 
 A. Acer saccharinum/Acer dasycarpum (Silver Maple) and/or clones 

and cultivars:  This species is very susceptible to storm and wind 
damage, which could prove hazardous to life and property. 

 
 B. Acer negundo (Box Elder) and/or clones and cultivars:  The 

prohibition of this species is because of the Box Elder's 
susceptibility to storm and wind damage. 

 
 C. Ailanthus (Tree of Heaven) and/or species, clones and cultivars: 

This group is prohibited because it is very susceptible to storm 
damage. 

 
 D. Berberis vulgaris (European Barberry) and/or clones and cultivars: 

 This plant is the alternate host for wheat rust disease and is on the 
United States Department of Agriculture's "Prohibited Species 
List". 

 
 E. Catalpa speciosa (Northern Catalpa) and/or clones and cultivars:  

This species suffers a great deal of storm and wind damage and 



 

 
 
 17 

could be hazardous. 
 
 F. Juniperus virginiana (Eastern Red Cedar) and/or clones and 

cultivars:  This plant is the alternate host for the Hawthorn-Apple-
Cedar Rust. 

 
 G. Populus (Poplar) species and/or clones and cultivars:  This 

generic plant group can prove to be hazardous due to its 
susceptibility to storm and wind damage. 

 
 H. Salix (Willow) species and/or clones and cultivars:  Problems will 

develop with this generic plant group because of the large root 
system which quite often finds its way into sanitary and storm 
sewers.  In order to prevent unnecessary sewer maintenance, Salix 
(Willow) is prohibited. 

 
 I. Ulmus americana (American Elm) and/or clones and cultivars  

which are not resistant to the fungus disease Cerotostomella Elmi 
(Dutch Elm Disease):  Due to the disease problems affecting this 
plant group, and since the dead and dying trees could be 
hazardous to life and property, the planting of Ulmus americana 
(American Elm) is prohibited. 

 
 J. Ulmus parvifolia (Chinese Elm) and/or clones and cultivars:  This 

species is very susceptible to storm and wind damage and could 
be very hazardous during these conditions. 



 

 
 

 D-1 LANDSCAPING AS REQUIRED BY TROY CITY CODE 
 
 
DISTRICT      PRESENT LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS 
 
C-F, B-1, B-2, B-3, H-S,   1. 10' greenbelt along any public street, with 1 tree 
O-1, O-M, O-S-C, R-C, M-1  for every 30 lineal feet of frontage. 
 
 2. 10% of site area landscaped - front and side yards only. 
 
  General Note:  Not more than 20% of required landscape area  
 will be covered with non-living material, i.e. woodchips, stone,  
 etc. 
 
R-1 and R-2 Subdivision Control Ordinance requirements only 
 
CR-1 1. 10' greenbelt along any public street, with 1 tree planted for  
  every 20' of frontage. 
 
 2. 5' berm along any property line abutting a major thoroughfare  
  with 1 tree planted for every 20' of frontage. 
 
 3. 15% of site shall be landscaped open space. 
 
 4. One tree shall be planted for every 2 dwelling units. 
 
R-1T and R-M 1. 10' greenbelt along any public street with 1 tree planted for  
  every 20' of frontage. 
 
 2. 4' berm along any property line abutting a major thoroughfare,  
 with 1 tree planted for every 20' of frontage. 
 
 3. 5' berm along any property line abutting freeway, landscaped  
  with double row 6' apart, evergreen species, 4' O.C.   
  staggered 2' O.C. 
 
 4. 70% of required yards shall be landscaped, and 1 tree shall be  
 planted for every 2 dwelling units. 
 
RM-1 1. Same as R-1T and R-M, with the exception that a 5' rather   
 than a 4' minimum height berm is required along any property   
 line abutting a major thoroughfare. 
 
RM-2 and RM-3 1. Same as RM-1, with the following exceptions: 
 
  a. 75% (vs 70%) of required yards shall be landscaped. 
 
  b. Overall requirement of 450 square feet of landscaped open  
   space per dwelling unit.  60% of this open space area shall  
   be located in direct proximity to the buildings. 
 



 

 
 

 
D-2 The City:  The City of Troy, Parks and Recreation Department. 
 
D-3 The Developer:  The person and/or firm responsible for owning the project. 
 
D-4 The Landscape Contractor:  The person and/or firm responsible for the implementation of 
 the approved landscape development plan. 
 
D-5 The Planting Plan:  This drawing will delineate all plant materials that will be installed on the 
 site, and all existing plant materials that will remain on the site as an element of the total 
 landscape. 
 
D-6 Balled and Burlapped Materials:  Those plants which are transplanted with the soil in which 
 they were grown in, left intact around the plant's root system.  This mass of soil is then 
 wrapped tightly with burlap material to hold the earth in place.   
 
D-7 Bare Root Materials:  Those small deciduous trees (under two [2] inches in caliper) and  small 
deciduous shrubs (under three [3] feet tall) which have all the soil from around the  plant's root system 
removed in the transplanting process.  All plants which are moved in  this fashion shall be in a dormant 
state at the time of transplanting.  Evergreens shall not be  transplanted in this fashion. 
 
D-8 Potted Materials:  These plants have been dug in the bare root fashion and then replanted 
 in a container until the time they are installed as an element of a landscape project. 
 
D-9 Container Grown Materials:  These plants are grown in containers usually in a non-soil 
 growing medium.   
 
D-10 Landscape Specifications:  Those statements that outline the procedures that will be used 
 to install all plant materials and other landscape elements. 


